
 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
 

 

October 20th, 2016 

2:00 p.m. 

 

Administration Office of the 
Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Adoption of Agenda 
3. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
4. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes…………………………………………………………………………….....   3 

4.1)   Board of Directors Meeting – August 25, 2016………………………………………………………………………  3 

5. Business Arising From the Minutes 
5.1) Elgin County Shoreline Management Plan, meeting with Four CA’s…………………………………….. 6 

6. Presentations and Delegations 
7. Business for Approval…………………………………………………………………………………………………..………   9 

7.1) 2017 Preliminary Budget and Levy……………………………………………………………………………………….. 9 
7.2) Budget vs Revenue and Expenditures for the period ended September 30, 2016…………….….  16 
7.3) Walter Devereux Conservation Area……………………………………………………………………………………. 18 
7.4) Jeannette’s Creek Islands…………………………………………………………………………………………….………. 18 
7.5) 2017 Proposed Conservation Areas Fee Schedule……………………………………………………………….. 19          
7.6) Joint Health & Safety Committee Minutes, September 19, 2016……………………………………….… 21 
7.7) Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee Minutes – September 22, 2016………………………..………….. 25 

8. Business for Information……………………………………………………………………………………………….……. 27 
8.1) Water Management…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 27 
8.2) Regulations and Planning…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 29 
8.3) Conservation Areas……………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 33 
8.4) Conservation Services………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 35 
8.5) Community Relations…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 38 
8.6) Conservation Authority Education……………………………………………………………………………………….. 48 
8.7) Wheatley Two Creeks Association……………………………………………………………………………………….. 54 
8.8) GM’s Report………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 55 

9. Correspondence……………………………………………………………………………………………………….………… 56 
9.1) Conservation Ontario to the Honourable Kathryn McGarry, MNRF…………………………………….. 56 
9.2) Dutton Dunwich Council Resolution Re: Review of the Conservation Authorities Act…………. 57 
9.3) West Elgin Correspondence Re: Commenting period for Policy Updates…………………………….. 58 
9.4) Conservation Ontario Correspondence Re: Conservation Authorities Act Review………………. 59 
9.5) Chatham-Kent Correspondence Re: Draft 2017 Budget……………………………………………………….. 62 

10. Other Business 
11. Adjournment  

A G E N D A  



 

2 
 

  



 

3 
 

4. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

4.1) Board of Directors Meeting – August 25, 2016 

 



 

4 
 

 

  



 

5 
 

 

 



 

6 
 

5. Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

5.1) Elgin County Shoreline Management Plan, meeting with the four CA’s  

October 12, 2016 

Report to the LTVCA Board - business arising from the minutes of August 25, 2016 regarding the Elgin County Shoreline 

Management Plan (ECSMP) 

Background 

At its meeting on August 25, 2016 the LTVCA Board, by resolution, directed management to meet with each of the 

Conservation Authorities having jurisdiction within Elgin County for the purpose of clarifying the status of the Elgin 

County Shoreline Management Plan as it relates to their regulations passed pursuant to Section 28 of the Conservation 

Authorities Act.  The Board resolution resulted from a presentation by the Lake Erie North Shore Landowners 

Association (LENSLA) at that meeting. 

Current Situation 

Staff from all four Conservation Authorities met on October 12 at the Kettle Creek Conservation Authority and each 

provided a synopsis of the status of the plan and its impact on their respective operation policies and guidelines for their 

Section 28 Regulations, which are summarized as follows: 

Long Point Region Conservation Authority 

 ECSMP was adopted but subsequently rescinded due to deferral of the plan by Elgin County Council in 

November 2015; policies revert to 1989 Shoreline Management Plan 

 Shoreline regulatory limit established using data from 1989 SMP (similar to rates established by ECSMP) 

 1989 SMP recommendations and MNRF Great Lakes Technical Guidelines Appendix A.7.2.1 apply with minor 

changes in interpretation 

 New development prohibited within regulated area; existing development permits additions up to 50%, 

accessory buildings, pools not lakeward of existing.  Replacement, major additions with floodproofing and safe 

access; erosion allowance reduction to 60 years from stable top of bank. 

 Shoreline protection maintenance, upgrades, infilling where encouraged by 1989 SMP, new discouraged, for 

existing development only, subject to no significant updrift/downdrift impact 

 Plan to develop consolidated policy document, previously released for municipal consultation, for public 

consultation 2017 

Catfish Creek Conservation Authority 

 ECSMP adopted, subsequently rescinded, reverting to 1991 Shoreline Management Plan with all stakeholders 

encouraged to review the ECSMP with meaningful public consultation and input 

 Regulatory limit is based on current data for erosion rates and 1:100 year peak instantaneous water levels 

 New development prohibited within 100 year erosion allowance plus 3:1 Stable slope, confirmed at time of 

application 



 

7 
 

 Permits minor additions, repairs to existing dwellings no closer to natural hazard; studies required to ensure no 

offsite impacts 

 Repairs to existing protection is permitted, new protection requires engineering studies by qualified consultant 

 Comprehensive policy review anticipated within next year 

Kettle Creek Conservation Authority 

 ECSMP adopted 

 Regulatory limit based on new erosion rates for 100 year period plus stable slope allowance; 100 year flood level 

plus wave uprush, documents available for inspection at KCCA office 

 Existing policies adopted in 2006 with specific amendments since adoption 

 New development prohibited within erosion hazard limit, encourage relocation of existing structures further 

from hazard.  New development prohibited on dynamic beaches; permitted within flood hazard using 2-zone 

concept with flood proofing 

 Maintenance and upkeep of existing structures within erosion limit; minor additions/structures permitted 

subject to Great Lakes Technical Guidelines A.7.2.1 

 Shoreline protection may be permitted for existing development subject to a satisfactory impact statement, 

prepared by a coastal engineer, which demonstrates no increase in long term erosion rates on neighbouring 

properties; will not cause damage to adjacent structures; and will in no way have a detrimental effect on the 

environment.  Non-structural protection is preferred to structural protection, but is viable in fewer places.  Not 

considered viable for high bluff areas, encourage relocation or abandonment.  Existing structures can be 

replaced or improved on same footprint 

 Proposing a consolidated policy document consistent with format of MNR/CO Draft Policy Guideline (2008), will 

consider recommendations of the ECSMP 

Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority 

 ECSMP adopted by resolution October 2015 

 Regulatory limit based on new erosion rates for 100 year period plus stable slope allowance; and 1:100 Peak 

Instantaneous Water Level (storm surge plus wave uprush plus high lake level) 

 New development generally prohibited within “critically regulated area and if room available, encouraged to be 

located outside of the total regulated area (additional allowance of 15 M plus 100 year plus 3:1 slope) 

 Existing development permits additions up to 20% every 10 years, located no closer to the shoreline/bluff  

hazard than the existing structure; accessory structures incl. pools no nearer hazard than existing building; <100 

square feet no permit required 

 Shoreline protection is permitted for existing development subject to demonstrating no negative impact on 

adjoining properties within the impact zone, and repairs to existing allowed so long as it’s a like-for-like 

replacement of a prior approved structure (i.e. cannot be lengthened) 

 Current operational guideline contains blend of policy, operations; public consultation has occurred on new 

draft Policy, no substantive comments obtained; Operational Guidelines to follow.  Anticipate Board approval 

early 2017 following municipal consultation 

 

 



 

8 
 

Discussion 

Regardless of the status of the ECSMP, each Conservation Authority continues to administer its shoreline hazard 

regulations consistent with MNRF Technical Guidelines and no specific policy or operational changes have occurred as a 

result of its adoption.   Each Authority determines its regulatory limit using erosion rates established in earlier shoreline 

management plans and confirmed by the ECSMP.  Each Authority is either in the process of or is anticipating updating its 

policies and procedures, using the MNRF/Conservation Ontario 2008 Policy Guideline.  Recommendations within the 

ECSMP will be considered along with current policies and practices, public and municipal input. 

In developing their respective policies, the four Conservation Authorities are endeavoring to move toward greater 

consistency in the application and interpretation of policies, recognizing that each jurisdiction has unique geophysical 

conditions and has existing features including the port communities and nodes of existing development that will warrant 

specific recognition within the policy framework. 

 

Recommendation 

That the LTVCA Board continue to work with the province, municipalities, stakeholders  and the public to complete the 

update of its Policies and Operation Guidelines for the administration of its Section 28 regulation and as the basis for its 

review of activities under the Planning Act within its jurisdiction. 

 
  



 

9 
 

7. Business for Approval 

7.1) 2017 Preliminary Budget and Levy 
 
Date:  October 12, 2016 
 
Memo to:  LTVCA Board of Directors 
 
Subject: 2017 Preliminary Budget and Levy 
 
From:      D. R. Pearson, General Manager 
 
Background 
 
The LTVCA Board approved a 2016 budget of $3,026,022 million, funded by a general levy of $1,339,478 plus a special 
levy of $200,000 for Chatham-Kent for Flood Control Structures and the Greening Partnership/Natural Heritage 
Programs.  The general levy for municipalities other than Chatham-Kent was increased by $197,000, resulting in a more 
equitable apportionment and enabling the extension of stewardship and land management programs to all member 
municipalities.  The Authority provided assurance that this significant increase was a one-time adjustment and that 
future increases would be limited to values more reflective of inflationary increases.  Accordingly, for 2017, a draft 
budget has been prepared which reflects a general levy increase of 2.14%.  As in previous years, annual adjustments to 
each municipalities assessment within the watershed vary, and result in variances from this average ranging from 1.69% 
to 3.9%. 
 
Current Situation 
 
The 2017 Preliminary Budget follows the same format as 2016, which was revised to better identify programs and 
components, and to provide greater clarity on both expenses and revenue sources.  The proposed 2017 expenditures 
total $3,097,028 and are fully funded from all revenue sources including the general levy of $1,367,352 and special C-K 
levy of $205,000.     
 
Discussion 
 
Conservative assumptions about projected revenues are required for a number of programs, the most volatile of which 
is the Conservation Services/Stewardship program which by its nature is heavily impacted by the success of numerous 
funding applications.  The greatest variances from 2016 to 2017 include shifts within Water Management from Flood 
Forecasting and Warning to Flood Control Structures; Conservation Areas reflecting increased security and enforcement; 
Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum reflecting significant redevelopment activities; Conservation Services and 
Stewardship reflecting increased activity (funded largely from external sources) and a reduction in capital expenditures 
associated with the administration building project.  The impact for each municipality is shown on the levy table which 
accompanies the budget. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the 2017 preliminary budget totalling $3,097,028 be adopted, and that the member municipalities be advised of 
the budget and their share of the proposed levy as calculated; it being noted that the Authority is required to provide 30 
days’ notice of its intention to adopt a final budget and levy. 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

11 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

12 
 

 
 



 

13 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

14 
 

 
 
 
 



 

15 
 

  



 

7.2)  Budget vs Revenue and Expenditures for the period ended September 30, 

2016 
 
Background: 
 
Review the 2016 Budget to the Revenue and Expenditures for the seven months ended September 30th, 2016.  
 
Current Situation: 
 
EXPENSES 

 
2016 2016 BUDGET 2016 ACTUAL 

 
BUDGET 

SEPTEMBER 
PRORATION 

TO 
SEPTEMBER 30 

WATER MANAGEMENT 
   

FLOOD CONTROL STRUCTURES 152,044 114,033 134,052 

EROSION CONTROL STRUCTURES 31,438 23,578 8,811 

FLOOD FORECASTING AND WARNING 267,026 200,269 108,824 

TECHNICAL STUDIES 37,689 28,267 27,628 

PLANNING & REGULATIONS 207,139 155,354 172,534 

WATERSHED MONITORING (PGMN) 64,162 48,122 10,162 

SOURCE PROTECTION 24,900 18,675 23,897 

THAMES MOUTH DEBRIS REMOVAL 20,000 15,000 593 

     Water Management Subtotal 804,398 603,298 486,501 

    CONSERVATION & RECREATION PROPERTIES 
   

CONSERVATION AREAS 488,532 366,399 472,542 

    COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND EDUCATION 
   

COMMUNITY RELATIONS 166,047 124,535 104,223 

CONSERVATION EDUCATION 90,578 67,934 56,103 

SKA-NAH-DOHT VILLAGE 172,223 129,167 171,772 

     Community Relations & Education Subtotal 428,848 321,636 332,098 

    CONSERVATION SERVICES/STEWARDSHIP 
   

CONSERVATION SERVICES (FORESTRY) 39,268 29,451 13,373 

CHATHAM-KENT GREENING PROJECT 849,124 636,843 725,505 

PHOSPHORUS REDUCTION 315,852 236,889 272,327 

COMMUNITY TREES INITIATIVE 0 0 0 

     Conservation Services/Stewardship Subtotal 1,204,244 903,183 1,011,205 

    CAPITAL/MISCELLANEOUS 
   ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

REPAIRS/UPGRADES 
100,000 75,000 11,090 

UNION GAS CENTENNIAL PROJECT 0 0 0 

EMPLOYMENT PROGRAMS (FED/PROV) 0 0 0 

     Capital/Miscellaneous Subtotal 100,000 75,000 11,090 

    
 

3,026,022 2,269,516 2,313,436 

  



 

17 
 

REVENUE 

 
2016 2016 BUDGET 2016 ACTUAL 

 
BUDGET 

SEPTEMBER 
PRORATION 

TO SEPTEMBER 
30 

    
GRANTS 675,651 506,738 822,842 

GENERAL LEVY 1,339,478 1,004,609 1,339,479 

DIRECT SPECIAL BENEFIT 200,000 150,000 200,000 

GENERAL REVENUES 717,393 538,045 824,158 

FOUNDATION GRANTS & REVENUES 5,000 3,750 7,422 

RESERVES 88,500 66,375 0 

 
      

CASH FUNDING 3,026,022 2,269,517 3,193,901 

    
OTHER 0 0 770,200 

 
      

TOTAL FUNDING 3,026,022 2,269,517 3,964,101 

 

Discussion: 
 
Expenses 
Water Management expenses are below budget as there are several large items still outstanding and due to a relatively 
uneventful year to date in terms of flood concerns and issues. 
 
Conservation area expenses are above budget as most large projects, activities and related expenses and operation of 
the campgrounds occur during the summer months.   
 
Community Relations and Education are below budget mostly because of the McGregor Creek-Great Lakes Agricultural 
Stewardship Initiative (GLASI) Program run by the individuals in this program and their income and expenses being 
included in the Conservation Services - Phosphorus Reduction area.  SKA-NAH-DOHT Village is over budget as most of 
their repairs and expenses are incurred in the summer months and included in these expenses.  They also performed 
two larger and more expensive projects this summer.  These were replace part of the palisade walls and rebark part of 
one of the longhouses from additional grant money they received. 
 
Consistent with the May 31st budget analysis, Conservation Services are above budget due to several factors.  The first is 
higher tree sales and planting with most of the expenses being incurred in the spring and summer months.  The second 
is due to the front loaded costs of the purchase and installation of the equipment for the Jeannette’s Creek GLASI 
program.  The third is an additional grant toward the Jeannette’s Creek GLASI Program and the costs related to that 
grant.  The last factor is the McGregor Creek GLASI Program noted in Community Relations and Education above.   
Note:  There is $143,000 of capital asset expenditures for the Jeannette’s Creek GLASI Program not included in this 
amount that are being capitalized and amortized over the life of the assets. 
 
Capital/Miscellaneous is below budget as $135,000 of the expenditures for the Administration Building are being 
capitalized and amortized over the life of the assets. 
 
Revenue 
Grant income is greater than prorated budget because of more grants received than budgeted, like the McGregor Creek-
Great Lakes Agricultural Stewardship Initiative (GLASI), and also due to the timing of grants invoiced. 
 



 

18 
 

Levy revenue matches budget as all levies have been invoiced and recognized as revenue with only a small balance 
outstanding in accounts receivable. 
 
General Revenue is higher than the expected due to several factors.  Then first is planning and regulations fees are 
slightly higher than expected but this is mostly due to the seasonal nature of permits with the spring and summer 
months being the peak period. 
Conservation area revenues are higher than expected due to the seasonal nature of this area and a significant amount of 
revenues for the year have been earned at this point. 
Conservation education and SKA-NAH-DOHT Village are comparable to the prorated budget balances. 
 
Conservation Services and the Chatham Kent Greening Project are higher than expected due to two factors.  The first is 
the seasonal nature of this program and a significant portion of the revenues for the year have been earned at this 
point.  The second is due to several large projects like Clear Creek that were not included in the budget. 
 
Foundation Grants and Revenues is relatively even with annual revenue as the Memorial Trees Revenue has been 
settled for the year. 
 
The large Other revenue item is the due to the generous donation of two parcels of land. 
 
 
Recommendation: That the Board of Directors receive the Budget vs Revenue and Expenditures for the period 
ended September 30, 2016 report. 
 
 
 

7.3) Walter Devereux CA 
 
In 2010 the agricultural field (45 acres) associated with this property was planted in Tallgrass prairie for Biofuel research 
through OMAFRA.  This program has been completed and in 2014 the LTVCA board requested that staff look into 
alternative uses for this land.  Since that time we have been successful in a grant for developing the site as a farm 
demonstration site.  Therefore we would like approval to lease out roughly half of the Tallgrass prairie area for farming 
purposes.  We will recoup some costs here with the collection of land rent (approximately $5000/year), and at the same 
time maintain the prairie and create a self-guided tour site. 
 
 
Recommendation: That the Board of Directors give approval for staff to seek out a farm tenant to lease 
approximately half of the Tallgrass prairie area at the Walter Devereux CA. 
 
 
 

7.4) Jeannette’s Creek Islands 
 
We recently acquired approximately 120 acres of a Provincially Significant Wetland parcel located within Jeannette’s 
Creek.  Several hunters have approached the LTVCA with interest in leasing this land for the purposes of seasonal duck 
hunting.  Our neighbor Conservation Authorities including: ERCA, SCRCA and LPRCA all have lands which they lease out 
to the hunting community.   
 
 
Recommendation: That the Board of Directors come to a decision on whether hunting should be allowed on and 
around this land-locked property, or on other landlocked or isolated parcels owned by the LTVCA upon staff review.  



 

19 
 

7.5)  2017 Proposed Fee Schedules  

Background: 

An annual review of the various fee schedules at the Conservation Authority is performed with the new fee schedules to 

be brought before the Board of Directors for approval prior to the applicable year.  

Current Situation: 

The 2016 fee schedules were reviewed by their respective departments and all suggested modifications brought forward 

to the Board of Directors meeting held October 20th, 2016. 

Discussion: 

There were no changes recommended or made to the Regulation Fees, Planning and Technical Review Fees or 

Conservation Services Fees. 

The fee changes for the Education Programs are normally implemented at the beginning of the school year and will be 

brought forward at a meeting in the New Year. 

The Conservation Areas Fee schedule, as well as the fees had three minor modifications.   

 

The first change was Pavilion/Area Rental was added to Big Bend. 

The second change was the parking fee for Pavilion/Area Rental and Barn (CM Wilson) was changed from a flat fee to a 

fee per 25 vehicle passes.  This better accommodates the small groups and better reflects the increased work and costs 

for bigger groups. 

The third and final change is a small wording change to the security deposit.  The original wording was: 
† Requires $150 Cash Security/Key Deposit, to be refunded if applicable. 
And was changed to: 
† Requires $150 Security/Damage Deposit, to be refunded if applicable. 
 

 

Recommendation: That the 2017 Regulation Fees, Planning and Technical Review Fees, Conservation Services Fees 

and Conservation Areas Fee Schedules be adopted as presented.   

 

Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority 

2017 Conservation Areas Fee Schedule 

ALL PRICES INCLUDE HST 

 Longwoods Road Big Bend CM Wilson EM Warwick 

Camping (Single Sites♮)     

Group Camping (5 person min.)     
Seasonal Camping     

Seasonal Day Use Permits     

Pavilion/Area Rental     

 



 

20 
 

 

Day Use Fees <1.5 hrs <3 hrs Max per day Yearly Pass Bus 

  4.00 8.00 12.00 60.00 110.00 

 

Camping Nightly Weekly Monthly Half Season Season  
     (10 weeks) (Victoria Day – Thanksgiving) 

Hydro & Water 38.00 225.00 575.00 900.00 1600.00 

Hydro Only 36.00  210.00 

Unserviced 30.00 180.00     1450.00 

Reservation Deposit*  Deposit equals first night’s stay (Non-refundable without 24 hours notice) 

Group Camping 10.00 per person (Pre-Booked; Subject to $50 reservation deposit*, Non-refundable without 24 hours’ notice) 

      

Warwick† Weekends/night Fri & Sat bundle  Sun-Thurs/night Weekly 
(Includes all buildings)  

Peak Season (May-Oct) 300.00 550.00 200.00 1000.00 

Off Season (Nov-Apr) 250.00 450.00 150.00 750.00 

Reservation Deposit* 100.00 (Non-refundable without 30 days’ notice) 

 

Pavilion Rental† Per day, excludes parking (Guests must use Pay & Display machine OR Purchase passes in advance)  

Pavilion/Area Rental 100.00       

Barn (CM Wilson) 250.00 

Per 25 Vehicle Passes 50.00 

Reservation Deposit* 100.00 (Non-refundable without 30 days’ notice) 

 

Firewood Bundle (~10 pcs)  Bucket (½ face cord) 

  10.00   50.00 

 

Other Fees: 

Extra Overnight Vehicle      10.00 per night  

Non-Camper Sewage Disposal 15.00 (C.M. Wilson Only) 

Seasonal Camping: 

 Extra Refrigerator 125.00 per season 

 Electric Golf Cart 60.00 per season 

 Extra Vehicle  60.00 per season 

 Grass Cutting 40.00 per cut 

 Utility shed (max 4’x4’) 50.00 per season 

 Winter Trailer Storage 200.00 per unit  

 

♮ Includes one vehicle per site; limit 4 persons per site unless family unit 

† Requires $150 Security/Damage Deposit, to be refunded if applicable 

* Reservation deposit applied to total bill 

 

 



 

21 
 

7.6) Joint Health & Safety Committee Minutes, September 19, 2016 

 
LOWER THAMES VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 

 
JOINT HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
 

September 19, 2016 
 
 
A meeting of the Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority’s (LTVCA) Joint Health and Safety Committee 
(JHSC) was held September 19, 2016.  Committee members present were: T. Casier, R. Dysarz, V. Towsley 
and A. Vriends.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site inspections of Merlin, Two Creeks, Rowsom’s, Big O, Lighthouse and Courey were 
conducted.  See completed Workplace Inspection Records for details 
 
 
 
 
ITEMS NOTED IN RED and BOLD are considered to need immediate attention. 

  



 

 



 

23 
 

 



 

24 
 

  



 

7.7)  Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee Minutes – September 22, 2016 

 



 

26 
 

 

 



 

27 
 

8. Business for Information 

8.1) Water Management 

Flood Forecasting and Operations 

There have been no significant events from a Flood Forecasting and Operations perspective since the last 
Board of Directors meeting in August.  The recent flooding nearby in Windsor, Tecumseh, and Lakeshore had 
flood forecasting staff paying close attention to the situation, but nothing significant happened in the Lower 
Thames jurisdiction.   

In addition to the McGregor Creek water level gauge at Highway 401 and Communication Road being out of 
commission, the LTVCA has learned that the Thames River water level gauge at Thamesville will also need to 
be taken out of commission for construction work.  The Victoria Road (Highway 21) bridge over the Thames 
River requires reconstruction. A new bridge will be constructed downstream of the existing one and then the 
old one will be removed.  This construction is scheduled for 2017-2018.  Construction activities will impact the 
water level gauge as well as the water quality station at this location.  It is likely that the stations will have to 
be removed at some point during the construction.  This will have an impact on Flood Forecasting operations 
for the LTVCA as this is the last gauge on the river before the City of Chatham used to predict flood levels.  For 
the duration of its inactivity, the closest gauge to the City of Chatham will be at Currie Road in Dutton-
Dunwich.  Even after the Thamesville gauge is reinstalled post-construction there will be impacts to flood 
forecasting for several years.  Modifications to the arrangements of the abutments will require a new rating 
curve to be developed for the location.  Until a new rating curve is developed, flood forecasts will be less 
precise in Chatham-Kent.         
 

Flood Control Structures 
 

At the last Board of Directors meeting, staff were asked to obtain additional quotes for brush removal by wet 
blade treatment for the Indian-McGregor Creek Diversion Channel.  Three additional contractors were 
contacted, and all said they would submit quotes, but as of October 12th, no additional quotes had been 
submitted.  It may be that this work will need to be pushed back until next year. 
 

Low Water Response Program 

 
The LTVCA participates in the Provincial Low Water Response Program as part of a team made up of local 
stakeholders and agency staff charged with managing the local response to drought conditions.  Low Water 
Conditions are determined based on several indicators including; 3 month rainfall, 18 month rainfall and 
monthly flows in the watercourses.  From October until March and again from July to August, the region was 
in a Low Water Level One condition.  In September, the Low Water Level One Condition was lifted as 
precipitation and Thames River flows had improved.  For the October reporting, precipitation totals remained 
above the Low Water thresholds.  Unfortunately, the increase in precipitation in the Lower Thames has not 
translated into increased flows in the Thames River and monthly average river flows have dropped back into a 
Level 1 Low Water Condition.  As a Low Water Condition is based on any one of the indicators, a Low Water 
Condition Level One has again been declared.  The socio-economic impacts of a Low Water Condition are 
lessened at this time of the year as the primary water users in the region are agricultural producers who aren’t 



 

28 
 

using significant amounts of water at this time of the year for irrigation purposes.  A report of local watershed 
conditions as they relate to the program is generated on an as needed basis, typically at the beginning of every 
month during the summer and fall.  Those reports are not currently posted online but are available upon 
request. 
 
Provincial (Surface) Water Quality Monitoring Network (PWQMN) 

 
Additional surface water quality monitoring has begun in the Lower Thames watershed as per the recent 
MOECC grant.  Twenty-one locations (up from eight) are now being monitored on a monthly basis.  Work is 
also ongoing to install an automated water quality sampler on an additional municipal pump drain. 
 
Fall water quality sampling has also begun on 7 of the local Provincial Groundwater Monitoring Network 
(PGMN) wells.      
 
Thames River Clearwater Revival  

 
Work continues on the Thames River Water Management Plan.  Recommendations for the water quality 
section are being finalized and a meeting of technical staff is scheduled for Thursday October 20th.  
Recommendations for the water quantity section are also being worked on with the latest round of revisions 
being circulated on September 29th and comments from Technical staff requested for October 12th. 
 
Source Water Protection 

 
There are some staffing changes going on in the Source Water Protection program.  Michelle Fletcher, the 
current Source Protection Coordinator, is moving on taking over the Aquatic Biologist position at the Upper 
Thames River Conservation Authority.  The program also requires additional assistance handling the start-up 
Risk Management workload it has contracted with the member municipalities.  The program is therefore 
hiring a short-term contract Risk Management Advisor.  Both positions have now been posted externally. 
 
Information Technology 

 
Investigations continue into the pros and cons, as well as the logistics, of possibly migrating the LTVCA’s in-
house email services to a cloud based service such as Office 365.  This would free up resources on the servers 
and it should require less staff time for computer maintenance.   
 

 

  



 

29 
 

8.2)  Regulations and Planning 

Planning and Regulations Policies and Operation Guidelines 
 
The LTVCA held four open houses for the Planning and Regulations Policy manual on September 7th at 
Longwood’s CA for Middlesex County, on September 8th at Dutton municipal centre for Elgin County, on 
September 12th at the Tilbury Arena for Essex County and on September 13th at the LTVCA Administration 
Building for the Municipality of Chatham-Kent.  In total, 31 landowners and stakeholders attended the 
meetings (Middlesex – 5 people, Elgin – 18 people, Essex – 3 people, & Chatham-Kent – 5 people).  Several 
requests for further information were made and staff will be reviewing the requests and will be sending out 
information as requested. 
 
The next phase of the review will be taking any comments (email/mail/fax) and reviewing the manual to see 
what if anything can be amended.  Some comments related specifically to the regulations themselves, which 
the CA cannot address as they are provincially driven.  Other issues were more directly related to the Elgin 
County Shoreline Management Plan.  Staff will be reviewing this document to determine what needs to be 
incorporated into our Policy manual.  Several discussions with concerned groups will need to take place first 
before this component gets written.  The manual will also be subsequently circulated to municipal planners, 
drainage superintendents, building inspectors, consultants, MNRF, other CA’s and other stakeholders within 
the watershed for comments. 
 
Questions have been raised about the existing and proposed structure of the LTVCA policies.  Current LTVCA 
policies are contained within a document called the Operational Guidelines, with some additional policies 
directly coming out of Board resolution and not yet incorporated in the Operational Guidelines document.  
The proposed structure will be a Policy manual which discusses policies at a higher level and provides 
explanations of concepts for the public as well, together with an Operation Guidelines document which will 
describe policy implementation details.  The Policy Manual will be the overarching guideline (similar to an 
Official Plan) and a subsequent review and update of the Operational Guideline (similar to a Zoning By-law) 
will take place.  Staff will be preparing a comparison table on what changes from the existing Operational 
Guideline to the updated Policy Manual will occur and making this available via the website. 
 
The Draft copy of the LTVCA’s Planning and Regulations Policies are still posted on the Authority’s website for 
commenting purposes by the Board of Directors, municipalities, other agencies, NGO’s and public.  Any and all 
input is greatly appreciated and welcomed.   
 
 
Regulations Enforcement 
 
Bill Menzie attended a Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF) Conservation Officer Team meeting 
in Aylmer on Friday, September 9th, 2016 and met most of the conservation officers within the Aylmer District. 
Mr. Menzie also met their head of intelligence. MNRF staff requested copies of the CA Regulation and 
Property Log Book to be printed if possible and also requested an electronic version. 
 
The meeting went very well and the CA/MEU can expect all the assistance we can get from MNRF.  MNRF staff 
will set up Protocols for information sharing. MNRF staff supplied the MEU with information for hunting and 



 

30 
 

fishing regulations and will set up an emergency call out list for us to use. It was felt to be a very successful 
meeting and Mr. Menzie felt that we will have great co-operation with any enforcement needs. 
 
 
There has been minimal activity with regards to Regulations Enforcement under Section 28 of the CA Act since 
the last Board of Directors meeting.  Two Notices of Violation were issued for fill placement in a flood plain 
without a permit, and 3 site inspections were conducted in relation to complaints from the public.  One of the 
site visits was handled by MEU with LTVCA staff following up with the landowner.   
 

Regulations Permit Applications 

LTVCA Regulations staff have observed an increase in the number of phone calls related to regulation inquiries 

this year (576 as of October 10, 2016 compared to 516 total in 2015).  These numbers do not include drop-in 

inquiries nor e-mail inquiries, which are also numerous.  In terms of actual permit applications, as of October 

10, 2016, there have been a total of 233 permits applied for with 230 granted while three still remain active.  

In 2015, 196 permits had been applied for.  The record number of permits applied for was in 2013 with a total 

of 239.  Staff believe that it is safe to say that 2016 will be a banner year for regulations and permit 

applications. 

 

 

    



 

31 
 

Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses 

 
 



 

32 
 

 

  



 

33 
 

8.3)  Conservation Areas   

2016 August 31 –- September 30  Visitation / Camping Stats    

Longwoods Road Conservation Area – 717 people – cancelled invitational cross-country running meet due to 
weather (2,165 in 2015) 
(Includes 2 people per pay & display permit (transaction) 
Pay and Display Permits - 177 vehicles (176 in 2015) 

E.M. Warwick Conservation Area – 80 (350 in 2015) 

Big Bend Conservation Area – 10 people (269 in 2015) 

C.M. Wilson Conservation Area – 3,005 (3,417 in 2015) 
(Includes 2 people per pay & display permit (transaction) 
Pay and Display Permits – 151 vehicles (96 in 2015) 

 
2016 Annual Season’s Passes - 42 have been sold at time of writing.  Note:  Additional Season’s Passes have 
also been distributed free of charge to Directors, staff, seasonal campers and draw winners from the Go Wild 
Grow Wild event in April.  The $60 passes are for sale at the Administration Building, C.M. Wilson and 
Longwoods Road Conservation Areas.  They are good for free dayuse at Longwoods, C.M. Wilson and Big Bend 
Conservation Areas.   
 
Conservation Areas 

 

CM Wilson CA 
 
Events held at CM Wilson: 
 

- McKinlay Memorial Service, September 11th, 2016 
- Canadian Cancer Society Mud Run Event, September 17th, 2016 

 175 participants and volunteers participated in this event, raising approximately $14,000 for 
leading edge cancer research, community programs and services such as the Wheels of Hope 
Transportation Program 

- Chatham-Kent & Lambton Children’s Water Festival, October 4th, 5th & 6th, 2016 
 
Barn renovations that bring LTVCA up to the fire code standards have been completed, as well as new paint 
and entrance doors.  The last step in five conditions required by the Chatham-Kent Fire Department has been 
completed with the Authority’s Fire Safety Plan having been prepared and submitted on October 11, 2016 to 
the Chief Fire Official for his approval.  
 
The boardwalk across the pond is currently under construction and will be completed before the end of the 
year.  This involves taking out the lumber and steel pipe, inserting several culverts, and covering with an 
earthen berm.  This project is funded by a grant from LSHRP (Land Stewardship Habitat Restoration Program) 
attained by staff for $25,000. 
 
 
 



 

34 
 

Signage 
 
Several new property signs have been installed at:  Rowsom, Two Creeks, Sharon Creek and Big Bend 
Conservation Areas.   
 
Two Creeks CA 
 
The Wheatley Two Creeks Association has been busy repairing and installing new bridge spans to replace old 
and unsafe structures throughout the conservation area.  The Pembina Bridge, which was shifted off of its 
footings in a flash flood event, will be replaced by a new 50 foot long span, anchored to large solid concrete 
blocks at each end.  The structure is totally reinforced along its length, with double steel guard rails. The deck 
will be pressure treated planking, with the planks inserted into a channel on each side. Individual planks can be 
replaced by opening a window at three places along the span and sliding in a new plank for future ease of 
maintenance. Ramps will be built up on either side for access to the bridge. 
 
There are also two other minor structures on small tributaries of the East Branch of Two Creeks that are to be 
replaced as well, Bridge 3, Hummingbird and Bridge 4, Walnut.  Both are currently wooden span structures in 
poor condition.  The Hummingbird Bridge will be replaced completely with a 4’ dia. x 30’ long CSP steel culvert, 
with the Walnut Bridge being replaced by a similar wooden span structure, both to have fill ramps brought up 
to the edges. 
 
Enforcement on CA lands 
 
MEU (Municipal Enforcement Unit) has had a visible presence at several authority properties, including 
Skunk’s Misery, Sharon Creek and Rowsom Conservation Areas.  Several tickets were issued at Skunk’s Misery 
in the past few weeks for illegal use of ATV’s on Conservation Authority land.  Further to this a meeting was 
held October 12, 2016 with: LTVCA, Thames Talbot Land Trust and Middlesex County that will allow MEU to 
enforce our regulations on their lands as well.   
 
Skakel Land Donation 

An engraved boulder signifying the donor’s contribution was placed on site. 

 

  



 

35 
 

8.4)  Conservation Services 

Grants 

 
Current grant applications: 
 

1. Wetland Monitoring of Rondeau 
a. OMAFRA - The overall project value is $375 000; funders contribution $125,000 

2. Agricultural BMPs 
a. OMAFRA - The overall project value is $400,000; funders contribution $128,000  

3. Tomorrows Greener Schools Today 
a. Ontario 150 -  The overall project value is $100,000; funders contribution is $49,000 

4. Tree of the Year Program 
a. World Wildlife Fund – The overall project value is $20,000; funders contribution is $7000 

5. Thames River Canoe Trail 
a. Chatham Kent Community Partnership Fund – The overall project value is $35,000; funders 

contribution is $15,000 
 

General Program Update 
 
The stewardship department has implemented a database system for more convenient project tracking, 
reporting, and invoicing.  We are currently making minor adjustments to ensure accuracy.  We are starting to 
use it for 2017 projects. 
 
 “A Living History- Heritage Trees of Chatham-Kent” was a success.  The 45 minute documentary which 
features local citizens was screened at the Chatham Cultural Centre, with over 115 people attending.  The fund 
raiser gala afterward raised $4,000. These funds will go toward tree planting in CK and support local artist 
Lorraine Roy. 
 
Natural Heritage Implementation Strategy 

 

Currently, we are packaging the information to determine woodlot loss from 2010 to 2015, calculating total 
Chatham-Kent Natural Heritage, and showing natural restoration acreage. 
 
Partnerships and Public Areas 

 

Again for 2016-2017 LTVCA has partnered with Chatham-Kent Public Health to provide trees in school yards.  
The program is called Tomorrows Greener Schools Today.  For 2017 there are plans to create an education 
awareness film for school presentations.  There are also potential grant funds for more promotion of the 
program. 
 
Events: “Farm to Coast” Bus Tour 
 

The LTVCA hosted the “Farm to Coast” annual stewardship bus tour in Chatham-Kent on September 22nd.  The 
tour provided local landowners and project funders with the opportunity to visit and learn about restoration 
projects that have been occurring throughout the watershed.  These projects included seedling plantings, 



 

36 
 

windbreaks, native prairie grasslands, wetlands and phosphorus reduction research initiatives.  Additionally, 
attendees had the opportunity to tour the GLASI Jeannettes Creek Priority Subwatershed and see how LTVCA 
staff, in partnership with local farmers, are assessing and monitoring the effectiveness of agricultural best 
management at reducing farm sourced phosphorus loading.  A soil pit was excavated at Blake Vince’s farm, to 
demonstrate the benefits that a no-till and multi-species cover crop system can offer to a producers overall 
soil health and soil resiliency to phosphorus transportation. 

 

Approximately 35 people attended the “Farm to Coast” bus tour.  Additionally, the bus tour received 
significant media attention, with multiple articles released in the Chatham Daily News regarding topics 
discussed on the tour.  The LTVCA would like to thank Jeff Jack, Blake Vince, Peter Roberts (OMAFRA), and Rob 
Buchanan for speaking throughout the bus tour event.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Private Lands 

 

Tree Planting:   

Projects for 2017 are already coming in as we continue to network with landowners and meet their needs. 
 
Wetlands:   

Wetland excavations continue with funding from Wildlife Habitat Canada $30,000, and National Wetland 
Conservation Fund $100,000.  Ducks Unlimited has been able to contribute to specific projects. 
 

Species at Risk Drainage Biologist 
 
A brief proposal was submitted to DFO for negotiation of a conservation agreement in September. DFO is 
currently reviewing the proposed negotiation budget and will notify the LTVCA of their decision in the near 
future. 
 
Nearly 75 acres of Phragmites control projects have been secured between Rondeau Bay and Wheatley. 
Treatment of these sites has commenced and will continue until the first deep frost. Site visits are still being 
conducted for Riparian Buffer Improvement Program within the Rondeau Bay Subwatershed. The three-year 
target of 45 acres has already been exceeded with over 50 acres of riparian buffer projects already complete. 

Figure 1: Blake Vince Speaking at the LTVCA “Farm to Coast Tour” about Soil Health, No-Till Farming, and Cover Crops 



 

37 
 

OMAFRA 
 
GLASI Jeannettes Creek Priority Subwatershed Project Update:  
 
The GLASI Jeannette’s Creek Agricultural Phosphorus Reduction and Monitoring Program remains in the 
monitoring and implementation phase.  The majority of monitoring network in the study area is now 
operational and is continually collecting rainfall, climate, and water quality data.  The field scale monitoring 
stations still require some instrumentation, however the LTVCA anticipates the 4 edge of field water quality 
sampling plots will be fully operational by the end of October.  
 
Water quality sampling has been limited this summer and fall for the GLASI project, as there have been few 
significant rain events in the Jeannette’s Creek study region.  The LTVCA collected flow data and a significant 
number of water quality samples from 2 pump houses in the Jeannette’s Creek study subwatershed during the 
rain event that occurred from September 28th to the 30th.  The Jeannette’s Creek study area received 
approximately 75 mm of rainfall over the duration of the 3 day rain event.  Auto-motivated samplers will 
continue to operate and sample at the pump stations as rain events continue to occur this fall. 
 
Farmer participation and agricultural best management practice (BMP) adoption through the project 
continued to increase this fall.  Year to date, approximately 39 BMPs have been implemented in the study 
area, covering a total of 1,431 acres of agricultural land.  The below chart illustrates the total acreage of BMP 
implementation for each adopted program BMP for the year of 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Three new best management practices have been introduced to the GLASI Jeannette’s Creek cost-share 
program in an attempt to increase adoption levels with local farmers and reduce agriculturally sourced 
phosphorus loads.  Applications for the new BMPs will be available to eligible landowners this fall.  Below are 
the newly introduce BMPs for funding in the study subwatershed:  
 

 Buffer Strips 

 Drainage & Water Management  

 Tillage & Equipment Modifications  



 

38 
 

8.5) Community Relations  

• Media releases are written as needed to bring attention to Conservation Authority programs and 
services.  They are emailed to local print and radio media, watershed politicians, LTVCA and LTVCF 
Directors, member municipalities of the LTVCA, Ska-Nah-Doht Village Advisory Committee, LTVCA staff, 
neighbouring Conservation Authorities and Conservation Ontario.   

 
o Since early August 2016, eight media releases have been written and circulated (attached)  

• New Response to Thames River Concerns – August 17 
• Invitation to Comment on the Proposed Update to the LTVCA’s Regulations & Planning Policy and 

Procedure Manual – August 31 
• LTVCA Presents Greening Partnership Stewardship Award – September 8 
• Outdoor Education Programs at Longwoods Road Conservation Area! – September 12 
• Tastes of Fall at Ska-Nah-Doht – September 16 
• 8th Annual Chatham-Kent & Lambton Children’s Water Festival Gearing Up! – September 21 
• Lots to do at Longwoods Road Conservation Area! – September 28 
• $2,000 Donation to Water Festival and Pond Trail Development – September 30 

       
All Directors were emailed a copy of the above media releases and as well, they were posted on our website, 
Facebook and Twitter.  Local watershed media contacts (daily and weekly print, television and radio stations) 
database update is ongoing. 
 

             
 
 



 

39 
 

             

 

          



 

40 
 

        

 

 Displays and Exhibits are created to update programs and information for the public. Twelve Interpretive 
trail signs for the trails at Longwoods are being installed in the fall.  Funded through a TD Friends of the 
Environment Grant in 2015, the signs will be installed before winter sets in with the help of the Thames 
Valley Trail Association and other local volunteers.   
 

As well, the LTVCA and the Kettle Creek Conservation Authority attended the Elgin County Plowing Match 
with an Elgin County Clean Water Project exhibit on September 10th.  A rainfall simulator model 
demonstrated the importance of cover crops to control runoff. 
 

 
 

 

  



 

41 
 

 
Elgin County Plowing Match September 10th 

 with Kettle Creek Conservation Authority 
 

 Paid Advertisements are taken out in the local tourist guides for Chatham-Kent, Middlesex and Elgin for 
C.M. Wilson and Longwoods Road Conservation Area for 2016. Staff also take out advertisements in the 
local print media to inform the public about workshops and seminars.   

 

 Presentations are given to community groups upon request.  Support is provided to staff for official 
openings, funder recognition ceremonies and community events upon request.   

 

 Committees and Meetings:  Staff attended meetings of the Thames-Sydenham and Region Source 
Protection Region’s communications team as they develop communication products for the Source 
Protection Plan development.  As well, staff attend Source Protection Committee meetings as needed.  
Staff participate on planning committees which meet regularly for the Children’s Water Festival – 
Chatham-Kent and Lambton and the Communications Subcommittee for the Thames River Clearwater 
Revival.   

 

 The LTVCA’s website and social media (YouTube, Twitter and Facebook) are updated daily with 
current/relevant Conservation Authority information and events.  The website address is www.ltvca.ca.  
We encourage you to check in with us daily and share with your friends!  Updates highlighting LTVCA 
projects, events and current conservation activities relating to the watershed are posted.  Photos and 
video clips of programs and projects are taken regularly.  

 

 Lower Thames Valley Conservation Foundation Directors meeting was September 20th, 2016.  Three 
memorial forest dedication services were held in September.   
 

http://www.ltvca.ca/


 

42 
 

 
McKinlay Memorial Forest Dedication Service  - Sept. 11  
at C.M. Wilson Conservation Area.  Thanks to Don for bringing greetings.  

 

Badder Memorial Forest Dedication Service  - Sept. 18  at 

Mosa Forest (Skunk’s Misery).  Grant Jones brought greetings at this event. 

 
Tilbury Northside Park Memorial Forest Dedication Service  - Sept.25 in Tilbury.  Thanks to Dan 

McKillop who  brought greetings at the event. 



 

43 
 

 Events in conservation areas: 
 

o Tastes of Fall At Ska-Nah-Doht – October 2 at Longwoods Road Conservation Area 

 

       

We had a great day at Tastes of Fall on Sunday, October 2nd in spite of the rain. Sisters of All Nations sang and drummed on the 
ravine bridge and we enjoyed the sounds from the trestle bridge. An incredible experience! Thank you SOAN for sharing with us. 
Thanks to the volunteers and visitors for your support! 
 

 Publications:  Community Relations staff assist Conservation Authority staff with publications as 
needed.  The GLASI brochure is currently being revised.   
Our Education fliers are hot off the press ready for the ‘back to school crowd’!  Publications are posted 
on our website for downloading. 

 

 



 

44 
 

 

 



 

45 
 

 

 



 

46 
 

 

 



 

47 
 

 

 Applications:  Staff apply for project funding as grants become available. 
 

 Courses/Certification:  Staff keep current by attending appropriate courses as needed.   
 

 Volunteers:  Our volunteers continue to play a huge role with the LTVCA.  From helping with special 
events to trail work, we are very grateful for their support! 

 

 

 

  



 

48 
 

8.6)  Conservation Authority Education  
 

Conservation Youth Group Workshops 

 
Workshops are performed at Longwoods Road Conservation Area and LTVCA outreach locations to youth and 
their leaders.  Youth groups work towards badges for various outdoor activities.   
Total number from August 31 – Sept.30, 2016 - 0 (0 in 2015) 
 

Conservation Field Trips for Students 

 
Total number from August 31 – Sept.30, 2016, 108 students and 15 adult supervisors participated in field trips 
to Longwoods Road Conservation Area. (43 students and 4 adults in 2015)  
 

Conservation Classroom Programs and Outreach 

 
From August 31 – Sept. 30, 2016 – 0 students  
 
 

 
8th Annual Chatham-Kent and Lambton Children’s Water Festival – October 4-6, 2016 

 
The Water Festival Organizing Committee wants to say a big thanks to all those whose helped out in the 

festival this year from set up on Sunday to take down on Thursday….and all the behind the scenes work in 

preparation for the festival .   Everyone played an important part in ensuring the success of the festival...the 

weather cooperated too!! 

We had a record attendance of over 600 elementary each day over the 3 day period and daily attendance on 

site each day was in excess of 900 people which included high school student volunteers, adult volunteers 

and teachers, EA.s and parent helpers.   There was high media interest and many stories and articles will 

appear in the coming week.   

We have received many positive comments from teachers and other attendees…the following is an excerpt 

from one of them:  

“I just wanted to thank you and your group again for organizing such an incredible experience for my students. Your volunteers are 

so helpful, accommodating and their genuine concern for the environment is contagious.  Many students had a positive experience 

and it was definitely a pleasure for me to see them in action outside of the classroom.  

So many blessings - including the incredible weather!” 

  



 

49 
 

Over 12,000 elementary students have now attended this festival over the past 8 years.   

Thanks again to everyone on behalf of the Water Festival Organizing committee.  

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A cheque presentation was made from Union Gas to Don Pearson - LTVCA in 
support of the Water Festival on October 5th, VIP Day.   

VIP’s toured the site with the Festival Coordinator - Don Hector (in red) on 
Wednesday, October 5th. 



 

50 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
A collage of Festival pictures! 

 

   

Photo Courtesy of Jim Blake  - Chatham This Week 
Capturing some the final day’s adult volunteer group on October 6th!  And this doesn’t include the daily 100 
secondary school volunteers!  The Water Festival Committee is so grateful for all the community partners and 
volunteers!  The Festival cannot run without you! 



 

51 
 

 
 

    
 

    
 

    



 

52 
 

 

    
 

    
 

    
 
 

Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum Field Trips for Students 

 
Total number from August 31 to Sept.30, 2016 – 116 students and 14 adult supervisors participated in field 
trips to Ska-Nah-Doht. (43 students and 4 adults in 2015).   
 

Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum Group Workshops 

 
Workshops are performed at Ska-Nah-Doht and LTVCA outreach locations for youth and their leaders.  Youth 
groups work towards badges for various outdoor activities.   
Total number from August 31 – Sept. 30, 2016 – 0 (0 in 2015) 
 
Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum Activities 
 

Noted under the Community Relations section of the agenda are the 2 new Ska-Nah-Doht Village school fliers 
for the 2016-2017 school year as well as the very successful ‘Tastes of Fall’ -  October 2nd event.  



 

53 
 

The community has been generous in their financial support of the Heritage Build Project 2016.  Green Lane 
Community Fund, the Lower Thames Valley Conservation Foundation and of course, the LTVCA allowed us to 
hire 2 summer students to assist LTVCA staff.  They began with the take down of the oldest longhouse frame 
that was still standing since 1989.  The Ska-Nah-Doht Village Advisory Committee met on September 22nd and 
viewed first-hand the progress!   
 
Here are some pictures of the new longhouse, maze, temporary shelter and corncrib! 
 

     
 

     
 
Fall school bookings will be keeping Curator, Karen Mattila and Village Education Technician, Rose Nicolas 
busy over the next several months.  Ska-Nah-Doht will also play an integral role in the Thames Valley District 
School Board’s Environmental Symposium on October 26th at Longwood’s. 
 
Follow us on the Ska-Nah-Doht Facebook page for pictures and updates! 

 

 

 

  



 

54 
 

8.7)  Wheatley Two Creeks Association  

Minutes of regular meeting held September 1st, 2016 at Wheatley Legion 
 
Attendance: Rick & Forest Taves, Mike Diesbourg, Lorna Bell, Dale Widdon, Pauline Sample, Bruce & Marjorie Jackson, 
Mariette Preyde, Gerry Soulliere, Phil Humphries. 
 
Agenda:Moved by Lorna, sec. by Gerry agenda be accepted as outlined ( Carried ) 
 
Minutes: With the amendment of Jim Tulen pouring the concrete for the Pembina bridge in place of Jim Celiska, the 
minutes were accepted as amended by Phil, sec. by Mike ( Carried ) 
 
Memorial Groves: Kevin Getty has been asked to mow the Groves, he will give us price after he finishes and we will 
decide then whether to accept it. 8 of the 11 trees that were ordered have been planted, also the bench has been 
installed. Bruce & Marj have added over 300 gallons of water to the trees. The annual Memorial service in the Groves 
will be held Sept. 18 conducted by Derek. David & Sharon Light will provide the music. 
 
Prop. & Equip.: The Bushhog is still in need of repairs. The Walnut & Hummingbird bridges will be repaired with culverts, 
Rick will ask Richard Dibbley if he is interested in doing the work. Will also find out if Larry has contacted Hike Metal 
about purchasing the I beams. 
 
Concerts: Despite the weather forecast on August 28 the concert with the Jay Allen Band went ahead as scheduled. 
There was no amplified sound but the over 200 people who showed up enjoyed the evening. To break even for the year 
without the grants we need $ 633.03. 
 
Financial Report: Account balance as of July 31 2016 was $ 30,121.72 
 
                                Account balance as of August 31 2016 was $ 28978. 70 
 
Balances were moved by Lorna sec. by Pauline 
 
Correspondence : None 
 
Old Business:  
 
New Business: A walk will be conducted after the Memorial service to familiarize people with the trails. 
 
Adjournment: Gerry moved for adjournment at 8:00 
 
Phil Humphries 
Secretary 
 

 

  



 

55 
 

8.8)  GMs Report 

Since the last meeting of the Board on August 25, staff conducted a series of public open houses 
regarding proposed changes to our Policies and Procedures for Planning and Section 28 regulations 
administration.  In addition, a meeting of the four Conservation Authorities regarding the status of the 
Elgin County Shoreline Management Plan as it relates to their Section 28 Regulation was held.  A status 
report is provided elsewhere in the agenda for your information, pursuant to the Board direction at its 
August 25 meeting. 
 
Staff from the 3 Conservation Authorities within the Thames Sydenham Source Protection Region met 
with representatives of the Ontario Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change to assist in the 
Ministry’s understanding of the funding needs of the program over the next several years and beyond, as 
the program transitions to “steady state”. 
 
Meetings with Carolinian Canada, Conservation Ontario and Ontario Heritage Trust were also attended in 
September, in addition to the “Farm to Coast” tour of Stewardship sites featuring Greening Partnership 
and Jeannette’s Creek GLASI projects.  Memorial Forest dedications also took place during the month of 
September. 
 
The fine weather continued into October, allowing the 8th edition of the Chatham-Kent and Lambton 
Children’s Water Festival to be an unqualified success.  
 
Staff have been busy preparing a preliminary 2017 budget for the Board’s consideration, which is also 
included with an accompanying report in this agenda. 
 
 
Workplace Wellness Recognition  
 
Earlier this year LTVCA staff participated in a workplace wellness walking challenge. This challenge 
helped keep staff active during the winter and was a great team-building experience. In Chatham-Kent, 
workplaces are recognized annually for their efforts to improve the health of their employees which in 
turn will reach to the community.  Areas of recognition are Health and Safety, Healthy Lifestyle, 
Workplace Culture and Being Green & Being Involved.  A team reviews each application to determine the 
level of recognition.  This year the LTVCA is a proud winner at the Bronze level.  

 

 

  



 

56 
 

9. Correspondence 

9.1)  Conservation Ontario correspondence to the Honourable Kathryn McGarry, MNRF 

 



 

57 
 

9.2)  Dutton Dunwich Council Resolution Re: Review of the CA Act 

 



 

58 
 

9.3)  West Elgin Correspondence Re: Commenting period for Policy Updates 

 

 

 

  



 

59 
 

9.4)  Conservation Ontario Correspondence Re: Conservation Authorities Act Review 

 



 

60 
 

 

 



 

61 
 

 

 



 

62 
 

9.5)  Municipality of Chatham-Kent Correspondence Re: Draft 2017 Budget 

 



 

63 
 

 


